Embassy Golf Links Business Park
B S R & CO, LLP Pebbie Beach, B Block, 3rd Floar

No. 13/2, off Intermediate Ring Road
Chartered Accountants Bengaluru - 560 071, India

Telephone: +91 80 4682 3000
Fax: +31 80 4682 3999

Independent Auditors Repart

To the Members of ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of ADIS Enterprises Private Limited {the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss {(including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our oplnioh and fo the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

~-aforesaid-financial-statements give the RfSFIANIoH TequIrsa by Ne " Companias At 2013 Act'y in the
- manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
--~accepted In India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss and other
- comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's directors’ report, but does not include
the financial statements and auditor's report(s) thereon.

.. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express.any... ...

clusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
stalements or our Knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
Includes muinlenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
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BSR &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
-irregutarities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

~~free-from-materiat-misstatement Whether g e o frEud or e and t6  SEuE S Susiter & Tapartthat
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audi
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluale the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

+.....Conclude.on the appropriateness of the Management and-Board of Directors use of the going concern -

basis of accounting In preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
an the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our cunclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may causc thc Company to cease to continue as & going concern.

""" ~oeeEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and coﬁtent of the financial statements, including the
distlosures, and whether the financlal statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and signlficant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
~ that we identify during our audit.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other -
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where appiicable, related
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continuéd)
ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

safeguards.

a. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 were audited by the
predecessor auditor who had expressed an unmodified opinion on 30 April 2024,

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A’ a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3} of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to_the best of our

“knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

. _in_._our.opinion_,___proper__.books..of.account._.as_.required_.by._Iaw._.have...been_kapt..by,the_Gompany_.so_

far as it appears from our examination of those books,

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the bocks of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

The Company has been exempted from the requirement of its auditor reporting on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls (clause (i) of Section 143(3)).

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.._.The Company.does.not.have any.pending.litigations which would .impact.its financial-position. . ... ... ...
b." The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there

were any material foresccable losses.
¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management of the Company has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,

ne funde have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share

. .premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or

entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with thé understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shail directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. '

(i) The management of the Company represented that, to the best of knowiedge and belief, no funds

have been received by the Company from any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities
{(*Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™ or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i} and (i) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for ail relevant transactions recorded in
the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company
as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

Gr=Mith-respeet-tothe-matte rto-berincluded-in-the-Auditors-Report-under-Section=197¢ 6ot the ATt

-In our opinion -and according-to-the information anci-explanatiohs'given to us;‘the:Company-is nota «

U plblic” eoimipany . Accordingly, the provisions of Séction 197 of the Act are not applicable to the

Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are reguired to be commented upon by us. _
ForBSR & Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

sy~

Amrit Bhansali

7 Pariner
Place: Bengalu'ru Membership No.: 065155
Date: 28 April 2025 ICAI UDIN:25065155BMLBXB5892
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of ADIS Enterprises Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) According to the information and explanations given to us and basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has no Property, Plant and Equipment as at 31 March
2025 and accordingly, clause (i} (a) (A) is not applicable.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (a) (B} According to the information and expianations given to us and basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, Company has no Property, Plant and Equipment as at 31 March 2025
and accordingly, clause (i) (a) (B) is not applicable.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the ieases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)  According to information and explanations given to us and basis of out examination of the

records ofthe Company . the Company hasno Property, Plant and EQUID g Right-"""""""
of-use assets) as at 31 March 2025 and no revaluation was done for intangible assets during
“the year. '

(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a)  According to the information and explantion given to us by the and basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no inventory held by the Company and hence reporting
under this clause of the Order is not applicable

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.

Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable tothe

Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v} The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
: the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prascribed (he maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) ot the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has baan
subsumed into GST.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of ADIS Enterprises Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs
or Cess or other statutory dues have been regularly deposited by the Company with the
appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays in a few cases of Provident Fund,
Employee State Insurance and other statutory dues.

According fo the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, £Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six- months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,

Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Cust GCess or other

statutory dues which have not been deposned with the appropnate authorities on account of

... .any dispute.

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b

{0

(d)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any
lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the informatior and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defautter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix}(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have

been used.for long-term.purposes.by.the Company.

(e}

M

(0 (a)

(b)Y

(xi) (a)

i

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an ovefall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from

-any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, as defined under

the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in

its subsidiaries, (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and an the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential atiotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertihle dehentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x}{b) of the Qrder is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
‘ Page6of 8
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of ADIS Enterprises Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Continued)}

)

©

(xii)

(xiil)

has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a vigil
mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act or SEB! (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Campany. In aur apinion and
according to the information and explanations given o us and on the basis of our examination

of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section

188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accountlng standards.

(xiv) (a)
(xv)

(xvi) (a)
(b)
()

(d)

{xvit)

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does
not have an [nternal Audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per
Section 138 of the Act.

In.our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the pravisions of the Core Investment Companies
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi}{d) are not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses In the current and in_the immediately preceding

{xviii}

{xix)

financial year.

Ihere has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,

other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the

' 'assumptlons nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
fts liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due,
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of ADIS Enterprises Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Continued)

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForB SR & Co. LLP
~ Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:1 01248\W/W-100022

P

-Amrit-Bhansali

. | L Paner
Place: 'Bengaluru Membership No.: 065155
Date: 28 April 2025 ICAI UDIN:25065155BMLBXB5892
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ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

All in INR thousands except share data

Balance Sheet
Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
A |ASSETS
Noxn — current assets
Other intangible assets 3 33 87
Deferred tax assets (net) 4 1,198 1,001
Income tax assets (net) 4 283 11
‘Total non — current assets 1,584 1,099
Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 5 6,299 8,095
(if) Cash and cash cquivalents & 8,055 8.978
(it} Other financiaf assets 7 2,718 3,724
Other current assets 8 196 255
Total currenl assely 17,269 21,052
‘Taotal assets 18,783 22,151
B |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Edquity share capital 9 100 100
Olwer equity 10 12,816 12,997
Total equity 12,916 13,097
Liahiliti
Non — current liabilities
_______ TFavigions 11 1,123 [T o
Total non-current liabilities ] 1,123 1,001
{Current liabitities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 - 2,292
(ii) Trade payables i3
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 49 8
{b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 248 364
small enterprises
{iii) Other current financial liabilities 14 2442 3,606
Other current liabilities 16 1,210 1,087
Provisions 11 795 696
Tatal current liabilities 4,744 8,053
Total liabilities 5,867 9,054
Tatal equity and liabilities 18,783 22,151

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors /._\

As per our report of even date
For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration. Ne. 101248W/W-100022

s

e

{ .
g
Amrit Bhansali

Partner
Membership No. 065155

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 28, 2025

Brajesh Kumar
Diirector
(DIN: 07833562}

Place: New Delhi

- Date: April 28, 2025

(>~

Bikash Chandra Mishra
Dircctor
(DIN: 07%00700)

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 28, 202_5_ _




ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

All in INR thousands except share data .

Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended
S No |Particulars Note No.
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income .
1 a) Revenue from operations 17 26,539 36,572
b)  Other income 18 478 397
Total Income {a + b) 27,017 36,969
Expenses
a) Purchases of stock-in-trade 96 o4
5 ) Employee benefits expense 19 25,334 33,442
¢) Finance costs 20 281 289
d} Depreciation and amortization cxpenscs 21 54 143
- e) Other expenses 22 1,549 771
Total expenses {(a+b+c+d+e) 27314 34,739
3 |Profit before tax and exceptional items (1-2) L 297} 2,230
4 - |Exceptional items - -
5 }Profit before tax (3+4) (297) 2,230
6 |Tax expense
a} Current tax 4 172 491
b} Deferred tax 4 {220) 33)
Tolal (ax expense : (48) 458
7 | Profit for the year (5-6) (249) 1,772
R |Other comprehensive Income :
ftemss illmotb lassified:to:profitorloss:
a) Re-measurement of defined benefits plan - - oo e [ 19 L T BT | e
by  Income fax relating (o these ons ' 1 . 23y - 26
. {Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (net of taxes) ’ 68 (78)
9  |Total comprehensive income for the year (748) (181) 1,696
10 |Earnings per share (EPS) (face value INR 10 per share) 23
(a) Basic(INR) 2491) 177.20
(0} Diluted (INR)} {24.91) 177.20
11 [Weighted average equity shares used in cornputing earnings per equity share
{a) Basic (Nos.) ' 10,000 10,000
(b) Diluted (Nos.} 14,000 10,000
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date .
ForBSR & Co.LLP Faor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants ) /_\
Firm’s Registration. No. 101248W/W-100022 - !
Brajesh Kumar Bikash Chandra Mishra
Partner Director Directar
Membership No, 065155 (OIN:07833862) " (DIN:07900700)
Place: Bangalore : Place: New Delhi Place; New Delhi

Date: April 28, 2025 Date: April 28, 2025 Date: April 28, 2025
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ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

All in INR thousands except share data

Statement of Changes in Equity

A.  Equity Share Capital
Year ended March 31, 2024

in Equity Sh
Particulars As at April 1, 2023 Chca:g;;;I:iu«:] :::tyrin: ™ [ Restated balanee as | Changes during| As at March
prit 1, pita/ P on April 1, 2023 the year 31,2024
period errors
Equity Share Capital 100 . 100 - 100
Year ended March 31, 2025
Changes in Equity Share .
. . ; . Restated balance as | Changes during | As at March
Particulars As at April 1, 2624 Cnpltn.l due to prior on April 1, 2024 the year 31,2025
period errors
Equity Share Capital 100 - 100 - 100
B.  Other Equity
Year ended March 31, 2024
Rci_‘:;“;i:nd Other reserves
Particulars L - — Total other equity
Retained earnings Equity contribution by
parent
As at April 1, 2023 11,281 20 11,301
Profit / (logs) for the vear 1,772 - 1,772
Othex:comprehensive:income:iloss) T6) {76)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,696 - 1,696
JASAEMArEh- A4 202370777 20- i T2 PT
Year ended March 31, 2025
Reserves and Other reserves
, surpius .
Particulars - — Tatal other equity
Retained earnings Equity contribution by
parent
As at April 1, 2024 12,977 0 12,9!57
Profit / {loss} for the year (249) - (249}
_ jOther comprehensive income / (Joss) 68 - 68
Total comprehensive incoste for the year (181) - (181
Asat March 31,2025 e 12,796 . 20 A28 e e e

.As per our report of even date

.. ForBSR & Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration. No. 101248 W/W-100022

b JWQ/JX/

The accompanying netes form an integral part of these financial statements.

' ) Fﬂ‘l“ and .on behalf of tl'ge ﬂnat'ﬂ of l.)ir;ec.:t;n“'s .. '
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e

Al'lkl‘lt Bhansali
Partner
Membership No. 065155

Place: Bangalore
Date: April 28, 2025

Brajesh Kumar

Director

(DIN: 07833562)

Place: New Delhi

Date: April

28, 2025

Bikash Chandra Mishra

Director
{DIN: 67900700)

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 28, 2025
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Statément of Cash Flows

Year ended
S No |Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. |CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax {297y 2,230
Adjusted for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 54 143
Finance costs 281 289
Interest income (459) (397)
Atlowance for expected credit loss 750 -
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes : 310 2,265
Maovement in working capital:
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables ‘ 1,046 1,212
Decrease / (increasa) in other gurrent assets 59 {i56)
TJecrease / (increase) in other current financial assets 1,012 (1,213}
{Decrease) / increase in trade payables (75) 223
{Decrease) / incrcase in provisions 312 365
(Drecrease) / increase in other current liabilities 123 (253)
{Decrease) / increase in other cutrent financial liabilities (1,163) (1,078)
Cash (used in) / generated from operations- 1,624 1,565
Direct tax (paid), net of refunds (444) 186
Net cash inflow / (outflow) irom operating activities 1,180 1,751
CASH FLOWS FROM
Interest received
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities. - e e e e T T dd .
C. |CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid (281) {289)
Net cash inflow / {outflow) from financing activities (281) (239)
D. [Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,370 1,866
E. |Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,686 4,820
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) 8,056 - 5,686
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of the cash flows .
Cash and cash equivaients as por above comprise of the following: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 '
Cash and cash equivalents 8,056 8,978
6,686

Balances as per statement of cash flows . - 8,056

. The accompanying notes form an intogral part of these financial statements, 0o con 0o

As per our report of even date

ForBSR & Co.LLP For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration. No. 101248W/W-106022 . p
ft Bhansall Brajesh Xumar Bikash Chandra Mishra
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 065155 (DIN: 07833562) {DIN: 07900700)
Place: Bangalore Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Dt April 28,2025 T D A 98,2025 Dater April 28, 2025
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Company overview
ABYS Enterprises Private Limited (“the Company™) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India. The Company was incorporated

on September 190, 2018. [ts registered office is situated at 401, 4 floor, Majestic Shopping Centre, JSS Road, Ambew Adi, Glrgaum, Mumbai - 400004,
India

The Company is engaged in the business of rendering facility management services.

During the year ended March 31, 2020, Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited (*DTSS”) acquired 5i% of outstanding equity shares of the
Company from the existing shareholders and during the year ended March 31, 2021, Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited ('DTSS’) acquired
the remaining 49% of outstanding equity shares of the Company from the existing shareholders. With this acquisition, the Company became a wholly

owned subsidiary of DTSS.

N

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the directors on April 28, 2025.

2. Bais of preparation / measurement and Materizl accounting policies
This note provides a list of' material accoynting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements,

2.} Basis of preparation-
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) and other applicable provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 (“the Companies Act”) and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind-AS are notified under Section
133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and are rounded off to the nearest thousands except per share data and unless stated
otherwise. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely
reficet the absolute figures. The figures which arc appearing as “0’are result of rounding off.

2.2 Basis of measurgment

""" The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual and going concern basis, except for the items where the, .
..ralevant Ind AS requires. the_ﬁnu.ucmLmstl:umentsJn_ba_ciussﬁed_us_fmvnlue_thmugh_pmﬁt orloss (CEVIPL. )_nud_m:e_mensumd_ﬂt_fmunluc,_mc[udmg —

the following material items:
a} certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) and contingent consideration that are measured at fair value;

b} assets held for distribution to owners upon demerger that are held at lower of carrying cost and fair value less cost to distribute;

¢) share based payments; and
d) the defined benefit asset / (liability) which is recognised as the present value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets.

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Staternents’ and division Il of schedule
111 of the Companies Act 2013. For the purpose of clarity, various items are aggregated in the statements of profit and loss and balance sheet. These items
are disaggregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicabte or required.

Fair value measurement
The Company records certain financial asscts and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company determings fair valuc bascd on the price it

--would receive to-sell.an asset-or pay to-transfer.a liability.in an.orderly transaction between-marked participants at-the measurement-date-and-either-in the - - oo

_ principal market or in the absence of a principal market, most advantageous market for that asset or liability.
) Fair value hierarchy

: Levcl 1 Quatcd pm,cs (unadjuslcd) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 luelaiuhy includes financial instruments measused usiny

“quoted prices: This includes listed “equity ‘instruments; bonds and ‘debentures and ‘mutual funds that have quoted price. The fuir value of ali— "

financial instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that arc obscrvabic for the assct or liability, cither direetly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly
(l €. dcnved from pnces) The fair value of financial mstruments that are not traded inan actwe market is determmed usmg Valuatlon techmqucs

falr value an mstrument are observable, the mstrument is mciuded in levei 2.

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs). If one or more of the significant inputs is
not bascd on obscrvable market data, the instrument is inciuded in level 3. This is the case for unlisted cquity sceurities included in level 3.

In accordance with Ind-AS 113, ‘Fair value measurement’, assets and liabilitics are to be measured based on the following valuation techniques:
{}  Market approach — Prices and other relevant information gencrated by market transactions invelving identical or comparable asscts or

l1abilities.
(ii}y Income approach — Converting the future amounts based on market expsctatlons to its present value using the dlscountmg method.

(iii) . Cost approach — Replacement cost method.
2.3 Summary of material accounting policies

a} Current versus non-current classification

The Company presenls assels and babilities w tie balasce sheel based vn curtent / nun-curteud classitication. Ao assel 1s classelied as current wlien il is:
(iy  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

(i)  Hcld primarily for the purposc of trading;

(iii} Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) - 3 quivalent unfess the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lizbility for at least twelve months after the reporting

RS non-gurrent,
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A liability is current when:

(i}  Expected to be settled in the normal aperating cycle;

(ii)  Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(iii) Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv)  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that
could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments, do not affect its classification.

The Comnpany classifics all ather liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-curreat assets and liabilities.

The operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as ifs operating cycle.

b) Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if; it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its
cosl can be measured reliably. Property, plant and equlpment under construction and cost of assets not ready for use at the year-end are disclosed as capital
work-in-progress (‘CWIP’).

Ttems of property, plant and equipment (*PPE”) and CWIP are initially recognized ai cost. Frechold land is carried at historical cost. All items of property,
plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price, asset retirement
obiigation and directly aitributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted
in amiving at the purchase price. General and specific borrowing costs dlrectly attributable to the construction of a qualifying asset are capitatized as

part of the cost,

Sul}ﬁequcm expenditure related Lo an item ol property, plant and equipment is added to its carrying value or recognised as a separate agset, as appropriate, ,
only.when.itis.probable-that.f {iturecconomic-hencfiss.atmibutablato.snch-subsequent-costassosiatedwith-the-itenwill-Aow-o-the-Group:The-carmyings

amount of :my component accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other expenses on existing iterns of property, plant and
_equipment, including day-to-day rcpairs, maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, arc rccogmsed in the statement of proﬁr. and loss in the year i
during-which-such-expenses-are-incurred:

Advances given towards purchase of an item of property, plant and equipment and CWIP cutstanding as at each balance sheet date are disclosed under
other non-financial assets.

Depreciation
The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful lives using written down value method from the date, the assets are
available for use.

The estimated ugeful lives of assets are as follows:

Category Usefut life
Buildings 60 years
|Plant and machinery 8 to 15 vears
Leaschold improvement Shorter of useful life or lease period
Computer cquipment 3 years
Furniturg and fixtures 14} years
-1 Offtce Equipment - Co Syears ¢ v T T T T e e
Vehicles 8 vears

estimated useful lives for these assets may therefore be different from the useful lives prescribed under Part C of Schedule I of the Companies Act 2013.

The tesidual values are generally nol more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The asset’s residual vatues, uscful lives and methods of depreciation
of property, plant and equipment arc revicwed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Where, during any financial year any addltlon has been made to any asset, or where any asset has been sold, dlscarded demohshed or destroyed, or

of such additiom or, as thie case may be, Up to the month on which such asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed or replaced.

Derecognition

An ilem of preperly, plant and equipment and any significant part, initially recognised, is derecognised upon disposat or when no future economic bonetits
are expected from its usc or disposal. Any gain or 1oss arising on derecogmition of the assct (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is recogmsed in the statement of proﬁt and loss when the asset is derecogmqed

c) Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets ate recognized wheéri the Company controls the asset, and it is probable that future economic benéfits atiributed to the asset will ﬂow w0
the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at historical cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Following initiai recognition, intangibic asscts are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any atiributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Intemally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalised software development costs, are not capitalised and the related expendituse is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the

experditure is incuned,

Subsequent expendifuscs capitalized only when it increases the probable future economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates.
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in accounting estimates and adjusted accordingly. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss,

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:
Category Useful life

|Computer software ' 5 years

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derccognised.

Software
Costs incurred in developing products or systems and costs incurred in acquiring software and licenses that will contribute to probable future economic

benefits through revenue generation and/or cost reduction are capitalised to software and systems. Costs capitalised include external direct costs of
materials, services, and direct payroll and related costs of employees' time spent on the project.

License & franchise:
Licenses & [ranchise [kes are amortized commencing [rom the date when license & franchise fees are available for intended use.

d) Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has control. The Company controls an investee entity when it is cxposed to,or has rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity,

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control of those policies. This is generally the case where the Company holds between 20% and

50% of the voting rights.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the ammangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
venture. Joint control is the contractually agrccd sharing of control of an arrangement, which cxists only when decisions about the relevant activities

The considerations mada in determining whether significant influence or jaint control exist are s:mllar to thigsi” ncccssary L dctcmunc control over the™ e

subsidiaries.

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures is accounted for at cost less impairment loss, if any. The said investments are tested for
impairment whenever circumstances indicate that their carrying value may exceed the recoverable amount.

e) Financial instruments
" A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets and financial liabilitics are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets
Initial recogaition and measurement - -
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction

costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at
transaction price. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within 2 time frame established by regulation or convention in the

-.market place (regular way trades).are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company. commits to.purchase or sell the asset. ...

" Subsequent measurement
.For purposes of subsequent measurement, ﬁnan(:la[ assets are clasmﬁed in bclow categones

“ (i) Financial assets at amortised cost

(i) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive mcome (FV'FAUL)
w(iit) -~ Financial assets; derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or logs (FVTPL) v

Financial assets at amortised cost

A “Financial asset" is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(i}  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

(ii)  Contractual terms of the assct give risc on specificd dates to cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and interest (SFPI) on the principal

amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) methed. EIR is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash roceipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of 2 financial asset. When
calculating EIR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayments, extensions call and similar options) but daes not consider the expected credit losses. Amertised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The interest income based on EIR is included as interest income
as a part of other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in profit or loss, A gain or loss on such
financial asset which is not past of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. This category generally applies to
trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at FVTOCI
A ‘financial asset’ is classified as at the FYTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
(1)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by cellecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

(1)  The agset’s conrractual cash flows represent SPPL

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income calculated using the EIR method, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit or loss. (n derecogrition of the assct, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
flum cquity lupwi'l ue loys.
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In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial assets, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCT criteria, as at FVTPL, However,
such election is made only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit or loss in respect of such assets
that are not part of a hedging relationship. The gain /foss on assets measured at FVTPL are presented in the statement of profit and loss within other
gains/losses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity investments
All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 09 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration

recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind-AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes suck election on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized
in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to profit or loss, even on sale of investinent. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative

gain or loss within equity.

... Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measuzed at fair valuc with gainfloss presented in the statement of profit and loss within other .

gains/losses in the period in whiclt it arises.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed

from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

(iy  Therights to receive cash flows from the asset hove expired, or

(i) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks

—When the"Company has not transfcrrcd subsmntm]ly ~all~risks-and rewards- of—ownershlp of-the-ﬁmmeml nsset—the—ﬁnnncml —asgetis nm—derecogmzed

ATy aﬁhe—asses—or(hj-the eump:rny—ha:s-ne:theﬁmnsfmed—nrar—remmed:subsmnﬁaily—aﬁ—the—nsks—amﬁmrds:n&tha—asset—bﬁrh s
.tl"a.nsfezred counol of the asset.. .

Similarly, where the Company retains coatrol of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the
financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances on a forward-looking basis using the expected eredit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair

valued through profit or loss. Lifetime ECL allowance is rccognized for trade reccivables with no significant financing component. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk
from initial recognition in which case they are measured at lifetime ECL. How the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk has been detailed in the notes to the financial statments. The amount of expected credit losses {or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

.. Financial labilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabifities af fair valug through profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or as derivatives. ...
dcsi gnated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriatc.

All ﬁnancml 11ab11mes are recogmsed mttlally at fEllI‘ value and in the case of borrowmgs and payablcs, ru:t of dlrectiy attnbutable transactton costs

--derivative financial-instruments: - i

Tire Company™s fnuancial Tabililes inclwde trade and oller pdydblt:b T0uny wnd bmruwmgb umludulg auk overtiadls, Tinaucial guaidulcc culraels and

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described below.

Financial liabilities at fair value through prefit or loss

““Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial

recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category aiso includes derivative financial instruments, if any entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging insttuments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109, Separated embedded detivatives are also classitied as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments, Gains or losses on fiabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabifities designated upon initial recagnition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if
the criteriz in-Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losscs attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or

. Joss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profitorloss. . . .
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Borrowings
After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent it i probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, Tn this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it rclates.

Preference shares which are mandatorily redeemable arc classified as liabilities. The dividends on these preference shares, to the cxtent such dividends
are mandatorily payable, are recognised in profit or foss as finance costs.

The fair vatue of the liability portion of an optionaily convertible debenture/ bond/ preference share or a zero-coupon debenture/ bond/ preference share
or compulsorily convertible debenture/preference shares. where the price of conversion of the debenture/preference shares into equity share is not fixed,
is determined using a maricet rate of interest for an equivalent non-convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the compound financial
instrument. This is recognised and included in shareholders® equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently remeasured.

When the terms of a financial Hiahility are renegntiated and the entity issues equity instrument to a creditor to extinguish all or part of a liability (debt for
equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is mcasurcd as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and
the fair value of the equity instrument issucd.

Borrowings are classified as curment liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period
with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed,
after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Financial gnarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of & debt instrument. Financial guarantee contractq are

o e Mwwuwul:ecogmsed—lmtlally—asa—llabA1-1ty—at:fair—va{ue—adjust@dfer—traasaetien—&est&&at—ar&d]:ﬁﬁﬂy—a{mbutablMeihmssuﬂnes—eﬁmeguaﬁantec;“ﬂth earrespondingsm—
increase it fnvestment in subsidiary. Subsequently, the fiability is measured at the hlgher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impoirment
__requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.. . . : - G R

Financial Guarantee issued by the parent of the Company are recognized initially as a pre-payment at fair value with corresponding credit to equity
contribution by the parent. The pre-payment is amortized over the pericd of financial guarantee on straight-line basis, and recognized as finance cost in
the staterent of profit and loss.

Derecognition: )
A financial lability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised fn profit or loss as other gains/ losses. When an existing financial liability s replaced by another from the
same [ender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially medified, such an exchange or medification is treated as

* the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as other gains/tosses.

Reclassifieation of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial asscts and liabilitics on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
" financial assets which arc cquity instrurnents and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only it
--there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior

management determine changes in the business model asa resu]t of external or intemal changes whlch are signiﬁcant to the Company’s operatlons Such

1 tiGh-prospectively-froti- the Feciassi fieation date-which.-
is the: s day ofthe Emmedlately Hext. reporting period fol[uwmg the change in busmess model.. The.Uompany.does.not restate.any. prevaously recognised

" gains, losses (mcludmg impairment gains or logses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance Shcct lf thcrc isa currently enforceable legal rlght o offset
€ [h

the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settie on a net ba

righl must not be contingent on tinire events and must be enfotceable in the normal course ot busmess and in t.he event of de fault mso]vency or bankruptcy
of the Company of the counterparty.

1) Trade receivables
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component arg recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment (allowance for expected credit loss).

) Current and deferred tax
Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the carrent period’s taxable income based on the applicable tax rate adjusted by changes

__in deferred tax assets and labilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses / unused tax credits.

Current tax
The cwrent income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management

periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
- provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Effective from Aprii 1, 2019, the Company has adopted the option of lower effective corporate tax rate of 25.17% (including surcharge and cess), as per
Section 115BAA of Tncome Tax Act.
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Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differentces between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in

the financial statements at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(i) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial rccognition of goodwill or an assct or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(i} In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent thet it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

(Y When the deferred tax asset relating fo the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recngnition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporaty differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabie that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to altow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax asscts are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has hecome prohable that futurs taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

: expected to apply in the year when the asset is reatised or the liability is settled, oo

fates (and tax laws) thal Have been enacted or i ¢ly enacted at the reporting date. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred
mcumc tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the pcnod that mcludes the enactment or the substantive enactment date,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to itemns recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

h} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, balance with bank and short-term deposits with an ongmal maturity of three months

or less, which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and cash equivalents and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balance with bank and short-term deposits, as defined
abave, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (including cash credit facilities) as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

i) Equity share capital
-Equity shares are classified as equity,

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuc of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

) Eradeand-oth er pay Al es e T S S e
- Thiesa amotitids rcprcscnt habliltles for goods and services pmwdcd to'the Company prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts
o 8 iifiectred and dre usially paid within 30"days of recogmition. Trade and oitier payables are présented as clirrent Rabiliti es unless | payment is not due
) within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the efTective

interest method.

. k) Provisions and contingencies

' __Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or a constructive obhgatlon as a result of past cvent and it is probable that an outflow of

tesources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions ar¢ recognised for legal claims and -
service warranties. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the [ikelitood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations

may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimrate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
~reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is the pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of -
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense.

These are revicwed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. In respect of losses that are covered by insurance, such
losses are recognised as an expense when there is clear evidence or determination or probability that any portmn of Lhe foss is not expecied to be settled
through insurance or other forms of recovery.

K@%@i fSc‘:@“\\
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Asset Retirement Obligations (ARG)

AROQ are recognised for those operating lease arrangements where the Company has an obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased
premises in a condition similar to inception of lease. ARO are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation and are recognised
as part of the cost of that particular asset and amortised or depreciated in the same manner as the asset to which it pertains. The estimated future costs of
decommissioning are reviewed annually and any changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are adjusted from the cost of the

asset,

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets )
Contingent liabilities are disciosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the )

occurrence or hon-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from
past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to seitle, or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
Contingent asset is not recognised and is disclosed only where an inflow of economic benefits are probable.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination .

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation r¢cognised in accordance with the zequirements for revenue recognition.

1) Revenue recognition

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligaticn is measured at the amount of transaction price {net of variable consideration) allocated to that
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of varjous discounts and
schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. Revenue is recognized when the control is transferzed to the customer and when the Compary

has completed its performance obligations under the contracts.

At the inception of the new contractua? arrangement with the customer, the Company identifies the performance obligations inherent in the agreement,
The terms of the contracts ar¢ such that the services to be rendered represent a series of services that are substantially the same wnh the same pattern of
the transfer to the customer,

Remmmsm\:ogmzed_as_fa]lnww

(i) Revenue from services represents the amounts receivabie for s services rendered

(i) For contract-based busingss (Expressed or implied), revenue represents the sales vatue of work carried aut. far eustomers dnring the perfod. Sieh
revennes are recogitized in the period in which the service is rendered.

(iii) Unbilled revenue (contract assets) net of expected deductions is recognised at the end of each period. Such unbilled revenue is reversed in the
subsequent period when actual invoice is raised.

(iv) Unearned income (contract liabitities) represents revenue billed but for which services have not yet been performed. The same is released to the
statement of profit and loss as and when the services are rendered.

(v} Revenue from the use of assets such as rent for usmg property, plant and equipment is recognized on a-straight-line basis over the terms of the related
leases unless payments arc structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessors® expeeted inflationary cost

increase.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the control of goods has been transferred, being when the products are delivered to the buyer, the

buyer having the full discretion over the use of the goods and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the buyer’s acceptance of the product.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the buyer, and
either the buyer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair valuc of the consideration received or
“Téceivable, net of réturns and allowanices, trade discounts and voluthe Tebates. Discoutts and rebates are cstimated based on accumulated experience. The
Company provides normal warranty provisions for general repairs for one year on all its products sold, in line with the industry practice. A liability is
recogmsed at the time the product is sold. Revenue is deferred and rccogrused ona stra[ght line basis over the extended warranty penod in case warranty
..is provided to customer for a petiod beyond one ycar : ) -

Rﬂlrle ing of servives SE—
In contracts involving the rendermg of services, revenue is measured usmg the proportionate completion method when no significant uncertainty exists .
i regardmg the amount of the consideration that will be derived from rendering the service. When the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligibie to be recovered,
Estimates of revenue, costs or extent of progress towards completion arc revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in estimated

reveniue or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known to the management,

Multiple-element arrangements
When a sales arrangement contains multiple elements, such as services, material and maintenance, revenue for each element is determined based on each

element’s fair value,

Revenue recognition for delivered elements is limited to the amount that is not contingent on the future delivery of products or services, future
performance obligations or subject to customer-specified return or refund privileges. .

The undiscounted cash flows from the arrangement are perindically estimated and compared with the unamortizad casts T the imamortized costs exceed
the undiscounted cash flow, a loss is recognized.

Interest income

For all financial assets measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the -
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call ard similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income

in the statement of profit and loss. .
: S piis e TN
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Dividends )
Dividend income from investments is recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless payments are

structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature,

m) Employece benefits
The Company’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, compensated absences, defined contribution to plans, defined benefit plans

and share-based payments. The employee behefits are recognized in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the
Company.

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and compensated absences that are expected to be settled within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employges render the related service are recagnised in respect of emplnyees' serviees up to reporting date and are
mcasured at the amounts gxpected to be paid when the liabilitics arc settled. The liability for compensated abscnces is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. All ather short-term emplayea benefit nhligations are presented ag employee benefits payable under other financial liabilitics, current,

Bonus
The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where contractually or legally obliged or where

there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Compensated absences/Leave obligations

The omployees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The employces
can carry forward up to a specified portion of the unutilized accumulated compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash at
retirement. The expected cost of accumnutaling comnpensaled ubsences is delertnined by acluarial valuation (using the projected unit credit method) based

—on-the.additional. amount.expected-to-be-paid-as-a-result-ofthe—umused-enticlement-that-has-accumulated-at-the-balance-sheet-date—The-expense-afos-smrmmm—

non-zceumulating compensated absences is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the absences occur. Re-measurements
arising out of actuarial gains / lossss are immediately taken intn the statement of profit ond loss and are not deforred

In respect of those employees who are entitled to an encashment of the leave at the end of every calendar year, a provision is created to account for the
liability. :

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

i) Defined confxibition plans such as provident fund and employees’ state insurance; and
ify Defined benefit plans such as gratuity.

Defined contribution plan
The Company’s pelicy to contribute on a defined contribution basis for eligible employees, to Employees’ Provident Fund, Employees’ Pension Scheme

and Employees’ State Insurance Scheme towards post-employment benefits, all of which arc administered by the respective Govenment authorities, and
7T has no further obligation beyond making its coniribution which is expected in the year in which it pertains. The contributions are accounted for as defined

cantribution plans and the contributions are recogmised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

~Tyefined-benefit-plan e

""" independent aciugrial vahiation. A portion of this liability for gratuity is centribuied o 2 fund administered and operated by a repiiied insurance company.
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit is actuarially determined (sing the projected unit credit method) at the end of each

year.

e Pregent-value of the defined benefit obligation is determined hy discounting the estimated fismre cash aurflows hy teference to market yields on government

bonds at the end of the reporting periods that have approximately similar terms to the related obligation.

The Company recognises the fotlowing changes in (he nel detined benetit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
(i} Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

(i}  Net interest expense or income

Past service costs arc recognised in profit or loss on the cardier of:
(i)  The datc of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
(ii)  The date that the Company recognises related resiructuring costs.

7T The net interest is caleutated by applying the above mentioned discount rate to the net balance of the defined beénefit obligations and the fair value of plan”

asasts. This cost is included in the employes henefits pxpense in the statement of profit and loss,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets (exciuding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately
in the batance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the peried in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company bas a defined benefit plan, viz,, Gratoity, for all its employees, the liability for which is accrued and provided for as determined by.an... ...
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Equity settled stock-based compensation
Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employecs render services

as coasideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model. The fair
value of options granted under various Employee Share option plans is recognised as an employec benefits expense with a comresponding increase in
cquity {sharc option outstanding account). )

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates in the period of change, if any, in the profit or loss, with corresponding adjustment to equity.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant data fair value of awards, but the likelihoed of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions, if any, are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Nen-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest becausc non-market performance and/or service conditions bave not been met. Where
awards include a market or nen-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting cundilivn iy
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

Cash settled stock-based compensation

Employees of the Company receive share-based compensation in the form of parent company’s share options, The cost of cash-settled transactions is
measured initially at fair value at the grant date based on a debit note received from the parent company, This fair value is cxpensed over the period until
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding hab:[lty

g n-)="—-Burrow1ng costs
Borrowing costs include interest calculated on thc ePf'ectwe interest rate method, other costs incurred in comection with burruwmg and exchange
dilfersnces arising from (oreign currenoy borrowings to the oxtent that they are regarded a3 an adjustment to the intercat cost. General and speciliv

~borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of the assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get -

ready for their intended use or sale (“qualifying assets”), are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assels arc substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the statement of profit and toss within finance costs in the period in which they are incurred.

a) Leases

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings, equipment and vehicles. For any new contract, the Company assesses whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘2 contract, or part of 2 contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a
petiod in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition the Company assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:
(1)} the contract contains an identified asset, which is cither explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the
asset is madc available to the Company

(ii) The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering
its rights within the defined scope of the contract

(iii) The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use.

The Corr'l'p'u'a'.ﬁy assesses whether it has the ﬂghtto direct ‘how and forwhatpurpose’ the asset is used fhroﬁg.hout. the period of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

_.of-usc agsct 1s. measured at cost, whicl coniprises.of e iiitial measwenent of the lease lability, any. inital direct costs ingurred by the Compaiy, an

cstimate.of any.costs.to-dismantle-and.remove the-asset at-the-end.of the-fease,-and any-lease payments-made-in-advance of the-lease commencement date-—

_ {net of any incentives reccived).

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets using the straight line method effective financial year 2024-25 (written down value method till financial

year 2023-24) from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the usefut life of the right-ofiuse asset or the end of the lease term. The

“At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (‘ROU") and a corresponding Jease liability on the halancs sheet, The right-

—mmwmwmmmﬂmmmmmmmm« exist

IndAST16 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if
the use of such option is reasonably certain. The lease term in futire periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects e current economic

circumstanges,

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases of the Company. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in ferms of
managing the assets used in the Company’s operations. The majority of extension and termination eptions held are exercisabie only by the Company and
net by the respective lessor.

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the

" interest rate implicit in the lease if thar rate is readily available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurcment
of the lease linbility are comprises of fixed payments {including in substance fixed), variable paymonts based on an index or rate, amounts expected 1o be
payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reasscssment
or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected
in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Company has elected to account for short term leases and leases of low value assets usmg the practical expedlents Instead of recogmsmg a nght-of-
use asset and leagg 1L
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Lease liability and right-of-use assets have been separately presented in the notes to the financial statements under “Other financial liability” and “Property,
plant and equipment’ (except those meeting the definition of investment property) respectively. Lease payments have been classified as ‘Cash flows from
firancing activities’.

Short-term leases and [eases of low-value assets:
The Company has elected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short torm leases that have a lease term of twelve months or less and leases of

low value assets. The Company tecognises lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as alessor .
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rentat

income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless payments are structured to increase in line
with the expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increase under “Other Income™ in the statement of Profit and Loss.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating tease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Leases are classified as finanee leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company te the lessee. Amounts due
from lessees under finance leascs are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases, Finance lcase income is allocated to accounting
periods 50 as ko roflect a conslunt periodic rite of roturs on the nel investment vulytending in respeet of the lease.

b)" Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently

if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
‘tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstanees indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount,

The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value-in-use, Value-in-use is the present value of future cash flows

expected to be derived from the asset. For the purposes of impairment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest tevels for which there are separately

==identifi ahle—eaqh—ﬂnw‘x—whir’h—are—iafgely—‘mdependmt—ﬂf the-eashrinflows-fremrother-assets-orgroupofassets-(eash=generatingunits-or- EGHImpairmen
occurs when the camrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a busingst vombination it allocated 10 the Company’s CGUs expwetad w benefit from the synorgios urising from the
business combination. Total impairment loss of a CGU is altocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the
other assets of the CGU, pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. An impairment loss on goodwill recognized in the statement
of profit and loss is not reversed in the subsequent period. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

¢} Earnings per share
Basic eamings per share arc calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (afier deducting

preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fitlly paid
equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events of bonus
issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing sharchotders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares),

Diluted Eamings per share amounts arc computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company (after deducting
_.preference dividends and attributable taxes but afier adjusting the afier income tax effect of interest and other financing cost associated with dilutive
potential equity shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic carnings per share and also the weighted
average number of equity shares thas could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The diluted potential equity shares
are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i. e the average market value of the outstanding shares).

“Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted s at thc begmn g of the ear, un

determitied ifidependéntly for each year presented.

e 5 - :
d) Statement of cash flows
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusied for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash

flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated,

~-2:4-Other-accounting policies
a) Investment properties
Property that is held for long-term renlal yields or for capilul sppreciation or both, and that is not oceupicd by the Company, is classificd a3 investment
property.

Investment properties ora meagured initially of cost, ineluding transaotion costs. Subsoquent to initial rcuogmtmn, investment propertics ore statcd at cost
"less aceurmulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

‘The cost includes bottowlitg costs for long-term consiruction projects if the recognition eriteria are met. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the

“asset’s camying amount only wheh it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of
such expenditure can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred, When part of an investment
property is repiaoed, tho carrying amount of the roplaced part is dorocognized.

Investment properties are depreciated using written down value method over their estimated useful lives of 60 years. The useful life has been determined
based on a technical evaluation performed by the management’s expert.

_ Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are pcrmancnﬂy withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profil or
Joss in thc period of derecognition. -

&
AT ﬁ“fy
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b) Financial instruments
Derivatives
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the

end of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends upon whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged, and the type of hedge relationship designated.

Derivatives which are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair valuc through profit or loss and are included in other gains/ losses.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined} instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract — with the effect that some of
the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows
that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variabie is

not specific to a party to the contract.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind-AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather,
it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind-AS 109 to the entire hybtid contract. Derlvatives embedded in all other host contracts are
aceounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held tor trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. 'l'hese embedded dertvatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or foss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly madifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset

out of the fair value through profit or loss.

¢} Iaventories

Tuventories are valued at the lower of the cost or net realizable value. Net realizable valug is the estimated sclling price in the ordinary coursc of business,
less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost includes cost of purchase and other custs mcurred in brmgmg the mvenmnes to thelr present locatlon and condmon Cost is determmed on f rst m

“first out basis.”

2y Nen-current assets held for sale/distribution to owners and discontinued operations ’

" The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale/distribution to owners if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale/distribution rather than through continning use and where z sale is considered highly probable. Actions required to complete.
the sale/distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the sale/distribution will be made or that the decision to sell/distribute
will be withdrawn and Management must be committed to the sale/distribution being completed within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current asscts held for sale/for distribution to owners and disposal groups arc measured at the lower of their carrying amouwnt and the fair valuc less
costs to sell/distribute except for asscts such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under
insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale/distribution are presented

separately in the balance sheet.
An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell/distribute. A gain
is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell/ distribute an asset (or a disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative

impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of sale/ distribution of the non-current asset {or disposal
group) is recognised on the date of dereccogmtlon

Propcrty plant and equipment and mtanglble assets once classified as held for sale/distribution to owners arc not depreciated or amortised.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is & companent of an entity that either has been disposecl of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

o [}o---Represents-a-separate-major-line of business or-geographical area of operations, -

(i) Is-part of & single coordinated plan to-dispose of a-separate major line of ‘business-or geographlcal area-of Operatmns, ar
(iii) -Is-a-subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view. o resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from
discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss.

ATt other nuotes o the Ginancial stataments mainly include amounts for continuing operations, undess otherwise mentioned,

&) Government granls
Grants from the Government are recognised at their fair vatue whese there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and the Company will

comply with all axached conditons.

Government grants relating to income or expenditure /expenses are deferred and recognised in the profit or koss over the period necessary to match them
~with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

.. Government grants rclating to the purchaat of property, plant and equipment arc included in non-current linhilities na deferred ineeme and Tecognised on
- & straight-line basis over the expected lives of related assets and presented within other income. .

f) Foreign currency transaction and balances
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company’s functional currency,ie, the currency of
the primary economic envirenment in which the Company operates.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spoet rates prevailing at the date, the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates prevailing as at the reporting date.

Subsequently, d1f‘ferences msmg on restatement or settlement of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of higtesesdhgpst in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions and translation differences
ed&1 %w b the accomulation in other equity as foreign currency translation reserve. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
a¥ed using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising }B‘Trﬂﬂ laéloan\f non-
kair value i is treated i in line w1th the recogniticn of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of -Sn aQon
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g) Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the Company
The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Compeny. A correspending amount is recognised direetly in equity.

Nomn-cash distributions are measured at the carrying value of the assets to be distributed in case of distributions in which all owners of the same class of
equity instruments are treated equally or the distributed asset is ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the distribution,
and at fair value of the assets to be distributed in other cases, with such value recognised directly in equity. For this purpose, a group of individuals shall
be regarded as controlling an entity when, a5 a result of contractual arrangements, they colicctively have the power to govern its financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities, and that uitimate cotlective power is not transitory. Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference
between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

h) Exceptional items
Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities which are non-recurring and are of
such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance of the Company.

2.5 Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”)} notifies new standards or mmendments to tho existing standnrds under Companics (Indisn Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Tnd AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS
116 - Leuses, reluting to sale and leascback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2024, The Company has reviewed the new
pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements.

2.6 Significant aceounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of the financial staternents in conformity with Ind-AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
- application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and other comprehensive income (OCI) that are

reporicd and disclosed in the financial statements and accompanying notes,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. They are based on historical experience and other factors including expectations

~—offiture-eventsthatrmay-haveafiranchabimpactorrthe-Companyand tratare believed-to-bereasonableunder thesirc oo Revis i o TeeoNHHAE ™"
cstimates are reeognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

- Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made various judgements, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements.

This notc provides an overview of the arcas that involved a higher degree of judgement cr complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially
adjusted due to estimates and asswmptions tuming out to be different than thosc originally assessed. Detailed information about cach of these estimatcs
and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

(i)  Estimation of current tax expense and payable — Note 4

(ii)  Estimation of defined benefit obligation -Note 19

{iii) Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward of tax losses — Note 4
(iv)  Impairment of trade receivables -Note 5

"Tmpairment
The Company assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Company that may lead to impairment of assets. Where
an impairment irigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts

incorpotate a number of kev estimate There are no reasonable foreseeable changes in these key eshmates whwh would have caused an impalr‘l‘nf'm nf
~these assels.™ T !

Share-hased payments
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected
life of the sharc option, velatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them,

Taxes
Deterred tax asseis are recognised tor unused tax losses i the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against whlch the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits topsther with future tax planning siratepies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity henefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefils and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include
the detcrmination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates, Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its lmu,—icnn-
‘mature, a defined benefit obligation is hlghly sens1t1ve to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The maortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. These mortality tables tend 1o change on!y at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases, and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Fair value measurement of {inancial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques inctuding the Discounted Cash Flows model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markeis where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instrunients.
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Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or {erminate the lease,
if the use of such option is reasonably ceriain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected tease term on a fease-by-lgase basis and there by
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the tease term, the Company
considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the
importance of the underlying asset to Company’s operations tzking into account the location of the underlying asset the availability of suitable alternatives.
The lease term in futurce periods is rcassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances.

Provisions
At cach balance sheet date basis the management judgement, changes in facts and lcpal aspects, the Company assesses the requircment of provisions
against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement,

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to ¢laims agamst the Company, including legal, contractual and other
claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resobved onfy when one or morse uncertain future events oceur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contmgencles inherently involves the exercise of significant judgements and the use of estimates regardmg the
outcome of future events,

Uselul lives of ungible/intangible assets
The Company reviews its cstirate of the usefirl lives of tangible/intangible assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.

-

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)
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3. Other Intangible Assets

Year ended March 31, 2024

Gross block Accumulated amortisation Nct carrying
Description of Assets As at April T, Additions Sal and As it March | Asat April1, | Charge for the Sale and As af March value as al
2023 during the year | _adjustments 31, 2024 2023 year adjustmetts 31,2024 March 31, 2024
Computer sofiware 254 - - 254 24 143 - 167 87
Grand Taotal 254 - - 254 24 143 - 167 87
Year ended March 31, 2025
Gross block. Accumulated amortisation Net carrying
Description of Assets AsatAprill, | Additions Salcand | AsatMarch | AsurApril1, | Charge forthe] Salband | AsatMarch | valteasat
2024 during the year | adjustments 31,2025 2024 year i 31, 2625 March 31, 2025
Computer sallware 254 - - 254 167 . 54 - 221 33
Grand Tatal 254 - - 254 167 EL] 221 33

4. Income tax
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are:

Statement of profit and loss:
Profit or loss section:

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current income tax: )
Cutrent income tax chargs 146 502
Adjustments in respect of current income tax expense / (reversal) of previous years 26 (11
Deferred tax:
TDecrease / (increase) in deterred tax assets (net) = - 33y
_|Ineome tax expense / (credit) reported in the statement of profit and loss . (18) 158

OCI section:
‘Fax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
23 26)
23 {26)

Particulars

Tax expense / (credit) on re-measurement of defined benefit plans

Income tax charged to OCI

Recanciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the tax rate for March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024:

Particulars . March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Accounting profit before income tax 297y 2,230
Statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax expense at statutory rate 75) 561
Adjustrments in respect of current income tax of previeus vears . 26 (11)
{Other nonsdeductible expormes e ]
(48} a5y

-{Tax expense reported.in the statement of profit and loss -
*The effective tax rate applicable to the Company for the financial year 2025-26 would be 25.17% (including surcharge and cess) based on the law
as it exists on the date of these financial statements.

- The balance in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) comprises temporary differences attributable to:

“|Particulars T March 31,2025 | March 31,2024 ]
P'roperty, plant and equipment / [ntangible assels 21 17
Defined benefit oblipations 554 540
Accruals and others 5 5
Allowance for expected credit loss 618 430
Total deferred tax asscts / (liabilitics) 1,198 1,001
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Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (liabilities), net:

Property, | Defined benefit Deductions in Accruals and Allowance for Total
plant and obligations respect of certain others expected credit
Partical equipment / benefits under the loss
artieulars Intangtble Income Tax Act, -
assets 1961
As at April 1, 2023 (3) 397 115 5 430 944
Tax inceme / (expense) during the period recognised in profit or 20 128 (115) . _ 13
loss
Tax incotme / {(expensc) during the period recegnised in OCT - 26 - - - 26
As at March 31, 2024 17 549 - 5 430 1,001
;I;as:s( ineome / (expetse} during the period recognised in prefit or| 4 28 _ _ 188 230
Tax incotne / (expense) during the period recognised in OCI - (23} - - - (23)
As at March 31, 2025 n %4 - 3 418 1,198
Income tax assets:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance 11 690
Taxes paid 759 602
Refund received (315) (789)
Current tax payable for the year (172) (492)
Income tax assets 283 11

5. Trade receivables

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilitics if and only if it has 2 legally enforceable ri ght to set ofT current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics relate to incoms taxes [evied by the same tax authority,

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables 8,756 9,802
Less: Allowance for expected credit joss 2,457 1,707
Tatal trade receivables 65,299 8,095
Break-up of security details:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured, considered good - -

Unsccured, considered good 6,299 8,095
Total 6,299 8,005

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person and from firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed in note 27.

T amoiint of 1088 allowance ("lifetime"

. break-up.of trade receivable into 'significant increase in credit risk’ and 'credit impaired' has not been disclosed separately.

cepteéd credit 1os8) has been récognised under the simplified approach-for trade receivable and hence 7T

Refer Note 28 for the Company’s policy regarding irhpairment allowance on trade receivables and Company’s credit risk management processes.

For outstanding balances, terms and conditions relating to related party receivables refer note 27.

-~The movement-in allowances for expected credit loss is-as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opcaing bhalance 1,707 1,707
Additions 750 -
Write ott (net of recovery) - -
Closing balance 2,457 1,707
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The ageing schedule for outstanding trade receivables from the due date is given below:
Year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date Total

Not Due | Less than 6 | 6 months-1] 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
months year Years
(§) Undisputed trade receivables 1,924 3,599 2,511 712 494 562 9,802
(i1) Disputed trade receivables - - - - - - -
Year ended March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date . Total
NotDue | Less than 6 | 6 months -1 | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
months year years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables - 5,450 418 920 929 1039 8,756
(i} Disputed trade receivables - . . . - - -
6. Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks:
— Bank deposits with original maturity of three months or less 8,056 8,978
Tatal 8,056 8,978

Bank balarices lying in various current accounts bear no interest.

“"There dre no repairialion restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at'the end of reporting period and prior periods.

7. Other financial assets
Particulars March 31, 20258 March 31, 2024

Other non-current financial assets . - -

Other current financial assets !
Unbilled revenue® 2,682 3,694

Interest accrued on deposits / investments . 36 30
Total other currcent financial assets 2,718 3,724
" | Total financial assets 2,718 3,724

*All unbilled ducs arc undisputed and falling under the ageing of less than six months from the date of completion of delivery of goods/services.
Further, unbilled revenues are ¢lassified as financial assets as right to consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage of time.

No other advances are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person and from firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partuer, a director or a member except as disclosed in note 27,

 Refer note 28 for the Company’s policy regarding impairment allowance on other financial assets and Company’s credit risk management processes.

| particmlars i == : : March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Other current assets
Prepaid expenses . 196 255
Tolul uther curreni ssyety 196 255
9. Equity Share Capital
Aunthorlzed share eapital
Particulars (Equity shares of INR 10 cach) Nos. INR thousand
As at April 1,2023 10,000 100
tIncrease/(deerease) daring the year : : T . : = -
As at March 31, 2024 10,000 1nn
.| Increase/(decrease) during the year . . S . . e I =] - -
As at March 31, 2025 ’ . 16,000 100

Issued, subscribed and paid up equity capifal

Particulars (Equity shares of INR 10 each) Naos. INR thousand
As at April 1, 2023 T, ' 100
Inerease/(deercasc) during the year - .
As at March 31, 2024 10,000 100
Increase;’(decrga}a.dud,u&the year b E_:\ “ - -

5

Asat Ma;cg_ 3fadso N\ 'f’/—\\a&\ 10,000 100
2 :

L\ﬁ
/\
\/

\
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Shares held by helding / ultimate holding Company / and/or their subsidiaries/associates
Qut of the equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below:

March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Holding Company Nos Nos
Dusters Tota! Solutions Services Private Limited* 10,000 10,000

Dividends

* Includes 1 nominee share (March 31, 2024: 1 share) held by Rituraj Kishore Sinha

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupces. According to the Companics Act, 2013 any dividend should be declared out of
accumulated distributable profits. A Company may, before the declaration of any dividend, transfer a percentage of its profits for that financial year

as it may consider appropriate to the reserves.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

‘The Company has onty one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share
and to participate in dividends in proportion (v the number ol and amounds paid on the shares held. The Company declares and pays dividends in

Indian rupees.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitfed to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution wili be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of sharehelders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of the shareholder % holding in the % holding in the
: Nos. Nos.
class class
o IaTions Savices Drivals Linied 10,000 00T 10,000 T 100%

No equity shares were issued as bonus, for consideration other than cash or b

reporting date.

Details of promoter shareholding in the Company

Year ended March 31, 2025

ought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the

8. No..| Name of the Promoter/Promoter Equity shares as on ., Equity shares as on March| .. {% Change during
Group March 31,2025 ’“’"t"’? in the 31,2024] % :"“’"‘3 in the year
{in Nos.) class (in Nos,)| fecies
Promoters
1 Dusters Total Solutions Scrvices 10,000 100.00% 10,000 100.00% -
Private Limited
Total 16,000 10,000
Year ended March 31, 2024
- Equity shares as on . Equity shares as on March . M .
$. Na. Name of the ]‘(’;umuter."Prnmater March 31, 2024 % ﬁn!d:ng in the 31,2023 At:aid['mg in |% Changil;iurmf
roup (in Nos.) class (in Nos,) e class ¢ yeal
Promaoters
L. .| Bustere Total Solutions Servioes. .. . |- comsnnnen LOBO0 ... 100.00%f 10,000] ... EOO003U ot e
Private Limited
Total 10,000 10,000
10, Other equity
Particulavs . March 31,2025 | March 31,2024 |
-JReserves.and surplus
Retained earningg 12,796 i2,977
Total reserves and surplus (A) 12,796 12,977
Other reserves
Equity contribution by parent 20 20
Total cther equity {A+B) 12,816 12,997
.Retained earnings
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 12,977 11,281
Net Profit / (loss) for the year (249 1,772
Iterns of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
- Remeasurements of post-cmployment benefit plans dircetly in retained carnings (nct of taxcs) 68 (76}
Balance at the end of year 12,796 12,977
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Equity contribution by parent

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of year 20 20
Fair value adjustment of corporate guarantee provided by parent - -
Balance at the end of year 20 20
Nature and purpose of Reserves
Retained earnings :
Retained earnings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company and re-measurement differences on defined benefit plans.
1i. Provisions
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 19) Nog-current Current Non-current; Current|
Gratuity . ) . L123 524 1,001 234
Leave liabilities B 271 - 462
Total 1,123 795 1,001 696
12. Borrowings
Particulars ‘ Note March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current Borrowings - -
Current borrewings
Secered
Loans repayable on demand
From Banks
RBL Bank a - 2,292
Total secured borrowings - 2,292
Current barrowings - 2,292
Aggregate Secured borrowings - 2,292
Aggregate Unsecuzed borrowings - -

Notes:
Current Borrowings:
Lean repayable on demand:

a) Loan repayable on demand represents the amount outstanding against the cash credit facilities from RBL Bank Limited. The loan carry interest
of 11.00% to 1£.45% per annum (March 31, 2024: 9.45% to 10.30% per annum) on outstanding amount. The loans are securcd by first pari-

passu charge on current assets of the Company. The interest rate is variable and linked with 6month MCLR + 1.25% p.a.

" The quarterly/monthly returns or statements of current nsaets filed by the Compeny with banks pre in agreement with the boola of aceounts,

" 13. Trade payables

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Non-current - -
. Current

Trade payables

-total culstanding dues of creditors other thun micro eaterprises and small enterprises(MSME) 49 8
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 248 364
Total current trade payables 297 372
Total 297 372

The terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities are as follows:

""a. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and arc normally settled on credit torms ranging from 30-90 days which vary by vendor and typc of service.

b. For outstanding balances, terms and conditions with refated parties, refer to note 27.
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The ageing schedule for outstanding trade payables from due date is given below:
Year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Tatal
Not due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(iMSME 8 . . i ] 3
(i) Others 303 61 - - - 364
Year ended March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Total
Not due <1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years .
((YMSME 49 - . . . 49
(ii}Others 14 234 ' E - K 248

There are no disputed dues during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.

Based on the information available with the Compary, the amount payable to creditors who have been identified as “suppliers” within the meaning

of “Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is as below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Principal amount and the interest [INR Nil (March 31, 2024 -Nil)] due thereon 49 3
Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the . _
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the _ R
appointed day during the ycar) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006
{Ameuni-elinterest-acersed-and-remaining-unpaid-at-the-end-ofeach-aeeanttingyeap=-—
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues ay above ae actuzlly paid w de simall enterprise e the purpose of disatlowance as o deductible expendiluee - -
under section 23 of the MSMEL Act, 2006
14. Other financial labhilities
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-carrent - -
Current )
Empleyee benefits payable 2,009 3,010
Other payables and accruals® 433 596
Total other current financial liabilities 2,442 3,606
15. Financial instruments by category
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost | FYTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost
o P———— — — — r— -
Trade receivables - - 6,299 - 8,095
Cash and cash equivalents - - 8,056 - 8,978
Other financial assets - - 2,718 - 3,724
Total financial assets - - 17,073 - 20,797 o
_|Financial liabilifies:
Trade payables - - 297 - 372
Borrowings - - . - - 2,292
Other financial liabilities - - 2442 - 3,606
Taie] fimmneind lshlllties . - 2,730 - 6,270




ADIS Enterprises Private Limited

All in INR thousands except share data

Fair values of assets and liabilities carried at amortized costs are as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Particulars Carrying value Fair v.alue Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets:
Tzade receivables 6,299 6,299 2,005 8,005
Cash and cash equivalents 8,056 8,056 8,978 8,978
Other financial assets 2,718 2,718 3,724 3,724
Total financial assets 17,073 17,073 20,797 20,797
Financial lizbilities:
Trade payables 207 297 372 372
Borrowings - - 2,29 2,292
Other finaneia! linbilitics 2,442 2,442 3,606 3,606
Total financial Habilities 2,739 2,739 6,270 | 6,270

The Company has assessed that the fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, capital creditors, trade payables, bank overdrafts and
other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-termn maturities of these instruments.

Valuation processes

The tinance department of the Parent includes the team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 3 fair values. The team reports directly o the chief financial officer (CFO). Discussions of valuation processes and results
arc held between the CFO and the valuation team at least once every 3 months, in line with the Company’s quarierly teporting period. Extemal

-valuer's.assistance is.alsotaken for valuation.purposes.where.required

The main evel 3 inputs used by the Company are derived and evaluated as follows:
e Discounts rate arc determined using a capital asset pricing model to calculate a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time

value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

« Risk adjustments specific to the counter parties (including assumptions about credit default rates) are derived from credit rlsk grading determined

by the Company’s internal credit management group.

» Volatility used for option pricing model is based on historical volatility of comparable companies.
+ Contingent consideration — estimated based on expected cash outflows arising from the forecasted sales and the entities; knowledge of the
business and how the current economic environment is likely to impact it.

16, Other Liabilities

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 3%, 2024

Other non-current liabilities

Current

Statutory ducs payable 1210 1,087

Total other current Habilities 1,210 1,087

Total other liabilities 1,210 1,087
17. Revenue from Operations

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Rendering of services

Faciliey management services

) From Housekeeping, Cleaning, Facility operation & management services 26,539 36,572
V Revenue from operations 26,539 36,572

The Company’s revenue is from rendering of services towards housekeeping, cleaning, facility operation & management services and has been
recognized over the period of time from the contracts with customers, located in Indian geography.

Contract balances:

The following table provides information about unbilled revenue from contract with customers

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
| Opening balance 3,094 2,481
Transfers from unbilled revenue, recognised at the beginning of the year, to reccivables (3,694) (2,481)
Increasc due to revenue recognised during the year, excluding amounts bilfed during the year 2,682 3,094
Closing balance 2,682 3,694
18. Other intome
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income on bank.deposits 459 397
Interest income %m@m 19 -
Total /( /\(\ 478 397
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19. Employee benefits

a} Employee costs include:

Particutars March 31, 2025 :March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 22,137 28,986
Contribution to provident and other funds 2,208 3,028
Cratuity expense 502 431
Leave compensation 487 997
Tatal 25,334 33,442

b)  Defined contribution plans

The Company has certain defined contribution plans.

Contributions are made to provident fund for employees at the rate of 12% of the salaty (subject to a limit of INR 15,000 salary per month) as per
regulations. The contributions are made to a stetufory provident fund administered by the Government. The obligation of the Compeny is limited to
the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or constructive obligations in this regard.

Further, contributions are made in respect of Employees’ State Insurance Scheme, for specified employees, at the rate of 3.25% of the gross pay as
per regulations. The contributions are towards medical benefits provided by the Government to the employees. The contributions are made to
employees” state insurance authorities administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it
has ne further contractual or constructive obligations in this regard.

Contributions to provident fund and employees” state insurance scheme are recognized as an expense as they become payable which coincides with
the period during which relevant employee services are received. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or

a reduction in the future payments is available.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2,208 3,028

Expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plans

c) Defined benefits plans

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or
termination of employment based on the last drawn salary, years of employment with the Company subject to completion of five years of service and
other conditions. The gratuity plan is a partly funded ptan and the Company makes contributions to a fund administered and operated by a reputed
insurance company. The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time

based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status and amounts

recoegnised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Expenditure to be recognized during the year:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2624
Cnrrent service cost 441 384
Interest cost 6l 47
Total amount recognised in profit or foss ) 502 431
Remeasur;];;e.rns - R
Retim on pan asseis, excliding amonnts included in inferest income 3 (12}
loss/(gain) from changes in financial assumptions 26 2
loss/(gain) from changes in demographic assumptions {10 -
“|Experience loss / (galn) ) ml 112
| Fotal toss / (gain) l'ecognised in other comprehensive income 1) 102
Chunge ln present value of detined benefit obligation Is summarized befow:
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of year 1,789 1220
Current service cost 441 384
Interest cost - 100 71
. Remeasurements (94) il4
Defined benefit obligation at the end of year’ 2,236 1,789
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets:
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets March 31, 2025 Marchk 31, 2024
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 553 517
Interest income 39 24
Remeasurements 3) 12
Fair valug bt piEn a{s‘e& atmhe closing of the year 589 553
- &= =
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Reconciliation of fair value of Assets and Obligations:

Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fair value of plan assets 589 553
Present value of ebligation (2,236) (1,789)
Asset / (liability) recognized in balance Sheet (1,647) (1,236)

The present value of defined benefit obligation relates to active employees only.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and post-employment benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Principal Assumptions:

Principal actuarial assumptions March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.55% 7.153%
Indian Assured Lives| Indian Assured Lives|
Mortality Mortality (2032-14)] Mortality {2012-14)
Ult. Ult,
Future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Altrition rate
Billing employees
- Age from 21-30 ycars 56.00% 52.00%
- 3140 44.00% 42.00%
- 41-50 38.00% 4{.00%
- 51 & ubuve 35.00% 43,00%
A anAnfitative-sensitiviteanalysis-forsignifieant-assumption-is-as-shown-below:
Assumptions March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| Discount rate” T 13 R
0.5% increase -1.11% -£.11%
0.5% decrease 1.14% 1.14%
Future salary increases
0.5% increase £.15% 1.15%
0.5% decrease -1.13% -1,14%

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to oceur,
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When caiculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calcutated with the projected credit unit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benrefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of agsumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous year.

Risk Exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are market volatility, changes in
inflation, changes in interest rates, rising longevity, changing economic environment and regulatory changes.

The Company has scleeted a suitable insurer to manage the funds in such a manner as to ensure that the investment positions are managed with an
asset-liability matching framework that has been developed to achieve investments which are in line with the obligations under the employee bencfit
plans. Within this framework, the asset-liability matching objective is to match assets to the obligations by investing in securitics to match the benefit
payments as they fall due.

The insurer, on behalf of the Company, actively monitors how the duration and the expected vield of the investments are matching the expected cash
oulllows arising from employee benefit obligations. The Company has not changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous periods.
Investments arc well diversified, such-that failure of any single investment should not have a material impact on the overall fevel of assets,

Defined benefit liability and employer contributions
The weighted average duration of the post-employment benefit plan obligations and expected maturity analysls of undiscounted gratuity bencfits is
as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
The weighted average duration of the post-cmployment benefit plan obligations (in years) 2 2

‘| Maturity profile: March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Less than a year - L1 786
Between 1-2 years . ‘ 566 457
Between 2-5 years . ' AR4 H%3
Qver 5 Years 209 : 202
Total 2,570 2,128

d) Purlmmcnt hus approved thc Code on Wages, 2019 and the Code on Social Sccunty, 2020 which govern, and are hkcly to 1mpuct the fons

godd
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2{. Finance costs

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest Expense - ' 281 289
Taotal 281 289

21. Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 3) 54 143
Total 54 143

22, Other expenses

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Otler Direct Gpaialing Cust ’ 182 125
Selling expenses 5 -

Travelling and conveyance 9 29
Postage and telephone : 5 5
Rent* 30 a0
Insurance : 5 5

Repairs and maintenance;

- Others 100 81

{Paymens to auditors (Refer details below) — —— — 205 — S5

Legal and professional fees 88 148
Allowance G expected eredit loss . ' 750 -

Other administration and general expenses 170 263

Total C 1,549 771

* Rent expenses pertained to short-term leases and low value assets.

Payment to Auditors

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
As auditor:
Stattery Audit fee (including fees for limited roview) 205 48
Other services (certification fees) - 7
Total payment to auditors 205 55

23. Earnings per share (EPS)
A reconciliation of profit for the year and equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share is set out below:

-IParticulars March 3%, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company : ] ]

"| Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic earnings (249%) 1,772
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company adjusted for the effect of difution (249) 1,772
Weighted averape number of cquity sharcs for basic EPS (Numbers) 10,000 10,000

‘| Effect of dilution: - '

“|Weighted average number of equity sharus adjusted for the effect of ditutlon ) 10,000 | 710,000
Nominal value of cquity shares (INR) t0 10
Barningg per share '

- Basic (INR} : (24.91) 177.20

- Dilwed (INR) (74.91) 177.20
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24. Commitments and contingencies
(a)  Capital commitment
The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of capital advanrce) and not provided is given below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of capital advances) and not
provided for

(b)  Contingeat liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Claimms against the Company not acknowledged as debt:

- Litigation matters with respect tc direct & indirect taxes

Other money for which the Company is contingently fiable

Total

The Company records a liahility when it is hoth probable that a Inss has been incutred and the amanunt can e rensonahly estimated. Significant judgmeni
is required to determine both probability and the estimated amount. The Company reviews these provisions periodically and adjusts these provisions
accordingly to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legat counsel, and updated information. The Company believes that the
amount or estimable range of reasonably possible loss, will not, either individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on its business,
financial pesition, results of the Company, or cash flows with respect to loss contingencies for legal and other contingencies as at March 31, 2023,

Disputed claims against the Company, including claims raised by the tax authoritics and which are pending in appeal /court and for which no reliable
estimate can be made of'the amount ot the obligation, are not provided for in the accounts. However, the present obligation, if any, as a resuit-of past
events with a possibility of outflow of resources, when reliably estimable, is recognized in the accounts as an expense as and when such obligation
crystallises.

25. Events occurring after the Balance Sheet dafe
There were no other significant events that occurred after the balance sheet date which would have any impact on the finaneial statements.

26. Operating segment .
Particulars . b March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

26,539 36,572 |*

Revenue from operations

Earning before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBETDA)* {440) 2,265
*Excluding other income and other gain/{loss)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Customers exceeding 18% of total revenuc

{No of customers exceeding 10% of total revenue 3 4
Taotal revenue of such custemers 24,296 22,432

The Company is required to disclose segment information based on the ‘management approach’ as defined in Ind AS 108- Operating Segments,
which in how the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM} evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on the analysis of
the various performance indicators. In the case of the Company, the CODM reviews the results of the Company as a whole as the Company is
primarily engaged in the business of rendering faeility monagement services in India. Accordingly, the Company is a single CGU, henee single
-segment Company. The information as required under Ind-AS-108-is available directly from the financial statements, hence no separate disclosures
have been made,

27. Related party transactions
Names of related parties .
_Ultimate Holding company - SIS Timited (formerly known as Securities and Intelligence Services (India) Timited)

T ]
= tea

Fellow subsidiaries Key Management Personnel and their relatives

- Brajesh Kumar - Directgr
- Bilcash Mishra - Director
- NG8 Sanjeev Kumar - Director

|- SIS Business Support Services and Solutions vt Ltd,
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The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year.

Holding Company Fellow subsidiaries Taotal
Particulars March 31, | March31,| March31, [ March3l, | March31, | March3l,
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Purchase of goods / receiving of services / expenses reimbursed by the
Company 204 262 153 230 st 492
Sale of goods / rendering of services / expenscs reimbursed by related party 53¢ - 515 - - 531 515
Rent paid 35 40 - - 55 40

Balances outstanding at the end of the year: Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Holding Company Fellow subsidiaries Total
Particulars March 31, | March 31,| March 31, | March 31, | March 31, | March 31,

2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
Trade poyables / other payabies 230 303 48 20 338 328
Trade receivables / other receivables . - 154 - - - 154

The sales to and purchases from, related parties are made on normal commercial ferms and conditions and at market rates. Quistanding balances at
the year-end are unsecured and carry interest equivalent to market rate, where specified, in terms of the transactions, and settlement occurs in cash.
For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has nat recorded any impairment of receivahles relating to amounts owed hy related parties (March
31, 2024: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which

the related pdrty operates.

There-is-no-alfowanee-aceount-for-impaired-receivablesnretatiorto-any-outstanding-balancessand-no-expensehas-been-recopnised-in-respect-of
impaired receivabices due from related partics.

28. Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support the financing of the operations of its
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. The Company’s principal financial assets inciude trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents
that derive directly from its operations, loans, security and other deposits.

The Company’s operations expose it to market rigk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s facus is to reduce volatility in financial statements
while maintaining balance between providing predictability in the Company’s business plan along with reasonable participation in market movement.
It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk

mainly comprises currency risk and interest rate risk, Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, loans and deposits
given, FVTOCI investments and derivative financial instruments.

Foreign currency risk )
Forcign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate becausc of changes in foreign cxchange rates

which arises from assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the respective entities and foreign currency
tevenue and vash Buws. The Comwpany’s expusure W the risk of changes in foreign cerrency excliange rales relates primarily W the Cotnpany™s
_operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries. The
. Company has limited foreign currency transactions and has limited exposure te foreign currency assets and liabilities resulting in the foreign currency
rigk being low.

.. The exchange. rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies has fluctuated in.recent years and may continue to do so in the futwre. .- -

Consequently, the results of the Company’s operations may be affected as the Indian Rupee appreciates/depreciates against these currencies.
There is no foreign currency denomirated financial assets and financial liabilitics as at March 31 , 2025 and March 31, 2024,

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk primarily arises from floating rate borrowing, including various revolving and other fines of credit. Interest rate risk is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Tite Company does not huve long-lerm burrowing at the end of the reporting period and therefore has no exposure to interest rate changes.

The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind-AS 107, since
neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.
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Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counterparties may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed resulting in a financial loss. The primary
exposure to credit risk arises from Trade r¢ceivables and Unbilled revenue. These are unsecured and are managed by the Company through a system
of periodically assessing the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of
historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables. Four customers accounted for more than 10% of the accounts receivable as of March 31,
2025 {March 31, 2024: Four customers). There is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Company uses the ECL method to asscss the [oss
allowance for Trade receivables and Unbilled revenue taking into account primarily the histerical trends and analysis of bad debts. The Company
docs not expect any credit risk or impairment in respect of amounts lent to its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, if any.

The credit risk for financial assets other than bank balances and trade receivables are considered low.

Significant estimates and judgements

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment caleulation, based on the Company’s past history and existing
market conditions. The Company estimates loss arising on trade receivables as a percentage of sales based on past trends and such loss is directly
debited to revenue instead of creating a provision for impairment of receivables.

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s
policy. Surplus funds are invested in bank fixed depesits or used to temporarily reduce the balance of cash credit accounts to optimize interest costs.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial liabilities. The Company
consistently generates sufficient cash flows from operations and has access to multiple sources of funding to meet its financial obligations and maintain

adequate liquidity for use.

The Company’s objective is to maintain 4 balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans,
debentures, shareholder equity, and finance leases. .

The Company has assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company hes access to a
sufficient variety of sources of funding and significant portion of short-term debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.
The Company believes that it has sufficient working capital and cash accruals to meet its business requirements and other obligations.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.
Year ended March 31, 2025

Particulars On demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months| 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
months
Borrowings - N . - . -
Other financial liabilities - 2,442 - - - 2,442
Trade payables - 297 - - . 297
Year ended March 31, 2024
Particulars On demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years > 5 years; Total
months
Borrowings 2,092 - - - - 2,202
Other financial liabilities - 3,606 - - . 3,606
Trade payables . - 372 - - - 372
Financial puarantee contracts - - - - - "
Reconciliation of Habilities whose cashflow movements are disclosed as part of the financing activities in the statement of cash flows:
Year ended March 31, 2025
] As at Aprit 1, Year ended
Balance sheet caption 2024 Cash flow Finance cost | Other costs March 31,2025
Interest acerued - (281) 281 - -
Year ended March 31, 2024
. Agat April 1, Year ended
Balance sheet caption 2023 Cash flow Finance cost | Other costs March 31, 2024
nterest sevried - (28Y) 289 -

As a matter of policy, the Company does not carry out any hedging activities.

There has been no default in servicing borrowings and/ or breaches in loan covenants.

P
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29.  Additional capital disclesnres

For the purpose of the Compay’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium, all ather equity reserves attributable to

the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise shareholder value and support its

strategies and operating requirements. The key objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structuze

with a focus on total equity to uphold investor, creditor, and customer confidence and to ensure future development of its business, The Company

determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and ather strategic investment plans. The funding requirements

for the Company’s operations are generally met through operating cash flows generated and supplemented by long-term and working capital

borrowings from banks,

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

a) safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
and

b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to optimise the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants to which it is subject. To maintain or adjust the eapital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a ratio, which is Net Debt divided by EBITDA. The Company
defines Net Debt as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued eperations, but Including bank balanves and depusils

irrespective of their uration / malurily.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Borrowings (Note 12) - 2,292
Cash and cash eguivalents (Note &), other bank balances and deposits (including margin money) (8,056} (8,978)
Net Debt (8,056) (6,686)
EBITDA - (44Q) 2,265
Net debt to EBITDA ratio 18.30 (2.95)

financial covenants attached to its borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call leans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any borrowing in the current period.

30. Additional regulatory information
(A) Financial ratios

Ratin Numerator Denominator March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 Yo variaoce
Current ratio * Current asset i . Cuzrent liabilitics 3.64 261 39.13%
Debt-equity ratio ! Toral debt Shareholders' equity {0.G0) 217 ~-100.00%|
Debt Service Coverage ratio * Earning befor interest and 12xcs Debt service-* {1.76) 7.35 -123.98%
Retum on equity ratio z Net profits after taxes Average shareholders' cquity -1.93% 14.46% -113.33%
Trade receivables turnover ratio Revenue from opetaticns Average tradg receivables . 3.69 4.20 -1227%
Trade payabics lurnover ratic Cost of goods soid Average trade payables 0.29 0.36 -20.81%
Net capital ummover ratio * Revenue from operaliens Working capital 2.08 3.15 -33.91%
Net profit ratio 2 Net profits aficr taxes Revemuc from operations -0.94%, 4.84% -119.51%
Return on capital employed 2 Eaming befor interest and taxes Capital employed ** -8.79%, 32.65% -126.92%
Return on investment The Company has no investment, hence Return on Investment ratio has not - ] - -

been disclosed

i. The effect of better working capital management. .
2. The variance in_ratios is primarily attributable to an increase in the allowance for expected credit losses and a decrease in unbilled revenue during

the reporting period.

*Debt service = Interest expense + current maturities of long-term debt
** Capital employed = Total equity + Net debt

(B) The disclosures required under Division [l of Schedule 1T have heen given to the extent applicabie to the Company.
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In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other (lungs, aims o ensure That il simulfaneously meets



